Electrical Systems Engineering Services II (ESES II)

Solicitation Number NNG11375927R

Draft RFP QUESTIONS – Part 3


1. GENERAL

1.1 We recommend a 45-day proposal response period similar to that provided in AETD’s Omnibus Multidiscipline Engineering Services (OMES) final Request for Proposal.  The RTOs require a system engineering, design, development, and supplier quotation process that takes several weeks, followed by the development and technical publication of the proposal response. We believe a 45-day response period will increase the number of highly competitive bids that GSFC will receive and provide overall greater value to GSFC. Will the government consider changing the DRFP 30-day response period to a 45-day response period? 
ANSWER: Given the significant length of time that the Draft RFP has been available to industry, including the Representative Task Orders (RTOs), and the limited number of expected changes to the RFP, the Government considers a 30-day response period to be sufficient.
2. Clarifications to RFP Questions – Part 1:

2.1 Question 1.A. asked if the Government expected to change the definition of a significant subcontractor in the final RFP (i.e., meet/exceed an average annual cost/fee of $10M). The Government did not provide a response to the question. Please consider the following additional information as you determine your response:

The draft RFP states: “If applicable, offerors may provide the experience or past performance of a parent or affiliated or predecessor company to an offeror (including a parent or affiliated company that is being otherwise proposed as a subcontractor on this effort) where the firm’s proposal demonstrates that the resources of the parent or affiliate or predecessor will affect the performance of the offeror. The offeror shall demonstrate that the resources of the parent or affiliate or predecessor company (its workforce, management, facilities or other resources) shall be provided or relied upon for contract performance such that the parent or affiliate or predecessor will have meaningful involvement in contract performance.” The Government has defined the term significant subcontractor as $10M+, but fails to quantify “meaningful involvement” by parent or affiliate companies.

Subcontractors can significantly impact ESES II performance whether or not they meet the Government’s established minimum threshold. For example, there are many niche capabilities identified within the SOW that are critical to GSFC missions that can be satisfied by subcontractors participating at less than the minimum significant threshold.

Small businesses are constrained in the amount they can subcontract by FAR 52.219-14, Limitations on Subcontracting, and ostensible subcontracting concerns.

Accordingly, we recommend the following:

a) Remove the significant subcontractor threshold and have Offerors define the subcontractors that are critical to their approach to perform the ESES II requirements and present their experience and past performance in Volume III. The 35 page limit requires Offerors to prioritize their subcontractors and not create a competitive advantage for large teams versus small teams.

–or–

b) Establish a more modest significant subcontractor threshold (e.g., $3-5M which was similar to the threshold in the 2004 ESES procurement) and apply this same threshold to the “meaningful involvement” by parent or affiliate companies to the performance of work on the ESES II contract. In this manner Offerors having parent or affiliated companies will have to define a role exceeding the minimum threshold to have the parent or affiliated company past performance factored into the evaluation.

ANSWER: The Government’s response to Question 1A in its Responses to Draft RFP Questions – Set 1, is hereby clarified as follows: Section L.18(a), paragraph 2 of the RFP will be revised to define a significant subcontractor (for purposes of providing past performance references) as “any proposed subcontractor that is estimated to meet/exceed an average annual cost/fee of $3M”. Offerors may provide the information requested in this section for these significant subcontractor(s) for similar efforts with a minimum average annual cost/fee incurred of at least 10% of the estimated average annual dollar value of the proposed significant subcontract.  For example, a subcontractor providing support averaging $4M per year will be considered a significant subcontractor (for purposes of providing past performance references) and may submit past performance references for similar efforts with an average annual cost/fee of at least $400,000 (10% of the annual efforts of the subcontractor under ESES II).

3. RFP SECTION B.6(e): Should the last sentence read either “In no event will the adjusted maximum amount exceed 130% of the original maximum amount” or “In no event will any adjustment to the maximum amount exceed 30% of the original maximum amount”?
ANSWER: Yes.  This language will be corrected in the final RFP.
4. RFP Section E.5:
Q: Since (AS) 9100 is a more stringent quality requirement for hardware development, why is this not the requirement instead of the option to comply with ANSI/ISO/ASQ Q9001-2000 QMS?.

Q:  This section states that the contractor shall comply with ANSI/ISO/ASQ Q9001-2000 QMS or (AS) 9100. Does this mean that the prime contractor must have these certifications?  

ANSWER: While the more stringent quality requirements of AS-9100 may be applicable to certain tasks under the ESES II contract, it may not be necessary for all requirements.  Accordingly Article E.5 provides for the applicability of either standard as specified in individual task orders.   The prime and its subs do not have to be “third party” certified to these standards, but are required to have a Quality Management system which is compliant to them.  As noted in the clause, “’compliant’ means that the contractor has defined, documented, and will continually implement during the term of the contract management-approved methods of operation that conform to the requirements given in the above-cited International Standard.
5. Section G.11(c): Please clarify that the government will provide computer hardware and software for contractor on-site and off-site personnel as part of installation-provided property and services.

ANSWER: The Government property described in clause (c) of Article G.11 may be made available to on-site contractor staff to the extent it is available and as specified in individual task orders. This clause further stipulates that the property must be used within the confines of the NASA installation that provided the property. Offerors should have no expectation that the Government will provide computer hardware and software for off-site personnel.
6. Section L.11: Will workstations/equipment be provided by the Government for use by ESES II offsite non-management contract Direct Labor personnel (engineering tools, workstations, etc. required to perform technical work offsite)?  If not, will the Government provide either plug (budget) numbers or a list of equipment and engineering tools required to perform this work?

ANSWER: The Government will not provide workstations or equipment for use by ESES II offsite non-management contract direct labor personnel. As part of the management plan, offerors are asked to describe their corporate resources including equipment and management tools that will be made available for this effort.
7. Section L.13, p.84, references the establishment of an ESES II Library. As of 10/27/11, the only materials posted to the library are the ESES-I RFP and a Code 560 overview briefing. Given the anticipated short term available for proposal responses, can you please provide an update on when and what type of additional information will be posted to the Library?  
(Related Question): The government has provided hours and labor categories in the GPM. It would be more complete to include a breakdown of hours by branch and task order. Will this information for the current ESES contract task orders be provided or posted to the ESES-II Reference Library?

ANSWER: As of the date these questions were submitted, certain limited information for all active ESES Interim contract tasks has been made available to companies.  This information includes task order titles, statements of work and total estimated cost plus fee. If the Government is able to provide any additional information it will be made available prior to or at the time of issuance of the final RFP. 
8. Section L.14(b)(1), p.86, summarizes the Proposal Content and Page Limitations. 

We suggest that the following items be added to the list of items excluded from the Page Limitations: i) List of Acronyms, ii) Table of Contents, iii) Compliance Matrix. 
ANSWER: This additional information will be added to the items excluded from the Page limitations.
9. L.14, pg 86 Proposal Content and Page Limitations indicates that Cost Volume (c) Basis of Estimates is limited to 20 pages, with an asterisk indicating that this number is to refer to "Prime and each individual significant subcontractor separately". In the text for L.17(h) Basis of Estimates (BOE) the draft states that the submission "shall not exceed 20 pages inclusive of Prime and subcontractors in compliance with the BOE page limitations set forth in Proposal Preparations—General Instructions provision of this RFP."  QUESTION:  These instructions are inconsistent.  Is the response to be 20 pages in total, or per team member?
(Similar Question): Related to the page count for the Basis of Estimates (BOE) – the footnote states “*Prime and each individual significant subcontractor separately”.Does the Prime BOE have to include all of the information from the subcontractor BOEs as well – in other words be a complete master BOE?  If so, we request that the Government allow for the Prime contractor to include the subcontractor BOEs in the Prime volume but NOT have the subcontractor BOEs count against the Prime’s 20-page limit.
ANSWER: The RFP will be revised to clarify that the 20-page BOE page limitation is applicable to the combined submission of the Prime contractor and all significant subcontractors.  
10. Section L.14a(5): Section L states that “Each volume of the proposal should specify the relevant evaluation criteria being addressed”.  QUESTION: Is this asking for a compliance matrix and if so, it is excluded from the page count?

ANSWER: If offerors elect to provide this information in the form of a compliance matrix it will be excluded from the page count. Section L.14(b)(1) of the RFP will be revised to reflect this exclusion.
11. Section L.14.a.5: The format for each proposal volume shall parallel, to the greatest extent possible, the format of the evaluation factors and subfactors contained in Section M of this solicitation.

Section L typically identifies the proposal response outline instead of Section M. Would the Government verify that the primary proposal response outline

ANSWER: Sections L and M mirror each other. As stated in the RFP the format for each proposal volume shall parallel, to the greatest extent possible, the format of the evaluation factors and subfactors as shown in these sections. However, this is not a mandatory requirement. 
12. The Phase in Plan is contained in the Management section of the Mission Suitability Volume and L. 14 (b) states it is not excluded from the 100-page allocation.  Since a Phase In is necessarily more complex for non-incumbents, all bidders, except the incumbent, will have to devote a significant portion of their response to addressing the requirements of Phase In, impacting their ability to respond to the other requirements.  The incumbent, of course will not have this handicap.  This is a significant advantage for the incumbent over all other teams.  QUESTION:  Will the Government exclude the Phase-In Plan from page count?
(Similar Question): Sections L and M call for the offeror to provide a detailed phase-in plan. Will the government consider excluding phase-in plan from page count in order to fully address each of the requirements?

(Similar Question): Section L.16.3 Subfactor B – Management Plan, p.92, instructs the offeror to provide a phase-in plan as part of the Management Plan. Given the importance of the contract phase-in to continuity of critical GSFC work and successful contract execution, and the limitation on management page count, we recommend making the phase-in plan a separate, non-page-counted plan as an attachment to the management plan, similar to the Quality Assurance Plan, Health and Safety Plan, and Total Compensation Plan.

ANSWER: The Phase-in Plan will be exempted from the Mission Suitability page limitations and the page limitation for Mission Suitability will be reduced from 100 pages to 85. Section L.14(b)(1) of the RFP will be revised accordingly.
13. The first sentence under the heading ‘Subfactor A – Representative Task Orders refers to “tasks included as Exhibit A.” Should this reference instead be to Exhibit 14?
ANSWER: Yes, this reference will be corrected in the final RFP.

14. Section  L.16, 3, Subfactor B-Management Plan, Paragraph 5: Please confirm that corporate resources include both the Offeror and teammates for PC board fabrication and other manufacturing facilities, as well as equipment, and management tools available for this effort.

ANSWER: Yes, corporate resources shall include those of both the Offeror and its subcontractors.
15. Subfactor B – Management Plan, page 91 states: “The offeror shall identify subcontractors interfaces to your organizational structure (if proposed) and provide: 1) the basis for selection of the subcontractor, 2) the nature of the work to be performed by the subcontractor, 3) the benefits of these arrangements to the Government, and 4) methods of managing subcontractor performance, including plans for addressing any problems that arise as a result of poor and/or non-performance of subcontracted portions of the contract.“ Agreements between team members can significantly impact contract performance. We respectfully request that Teaming Agreements be submitted as an Attachment to the Management Plan, excluded from the page limit. In addition, Offerors should specifically address the impact Teaming Agreements have on compliance with FAR 52.219-14, Limitations on Subcontracting. 

ANSWER: GSFC has, in the past, given serious consideration to recommendations that submission of teaming agreements be required in conjunction with offerors’ responses to its RFPs; however, to date it has elected not to make this a requirement.
16. Section L.16.3 Subfactor B.  This section seems to require that written position descriptions for specific labor categories be provided. It also instructs that “All position descriptions will be incorporated into the resultant contract in Section 6 of Attachment B.” However, Attachment B, Section 6, indicates that Position Qualifications are “For All Prime and Subcontractor Direct Labor Categories.”  This suggests that position descriptions only for Direct Labor categories are to be provided.

However, Section M instructs that the Government will evaluate both “non-technical position qualifications” as well as “non-incumbent technical labor category position qualifications”.  This seems to suggest that the evaluation will not be limited to only those that will be used and charged as Direct Labor (some management and administrative labor may not be charged as Direct Labor). 

Since Section L and Section M use different language, please clarify the scope of this position qualifications requirement. Is it only to include all labor categories charged as Direct Labor whether or not the category is management or non-management?
(Similar Question): Section L.16.3 Subfactor B – Management Plan, p.92, includes a requirement to “…provide written position descriptions for the specific labor categories envisioned for this requirement.” In contrast, Section M.3.1 Subfactor B – Management Plan, p. 108, indicates “The Government will evaluate the offeror’s non-technical position qualifications for reasonableness and adequacy in meeting the managerial requirements of an IDIQ contract of this scope and magnitude. The government will evaluate the offeror’s non-incumbent technical labor category position qualifications for comportment with the Government’s minimum technical labor category requirements as specified in Exhibit 15.”

Please clarify if the requirement is to provide position descriptions and education/experience requirements for ALL labor categories, or (as implied by Section M.3.1) only for i) the management and administration (M&A) labor categories and ii) those technical labor categories that are proposed in addition to the ones provided in the RFP.

ANSWER:  Offerors must provide position descriptions for all non-incumbent direct labor categories proposed, both technical and non-technical. 

17. Is it the Government’s intent that Position Descriptions be written in a style consistent with Exhibit 15 to facilitate their incorporation into the new contract? If so, can these be exempted from the page limit for Volume II – Mission Suitability, or alternatively be only included in Volume III - Cost?

ANSWER:  It is preferable that offeror-submitted position descriptions be written in a style consistent with the Government’s position descriptions; however a different style may be used as long as the same information is provided.  Position descriptions will be excluded from the Mission Suitability page limitations (Reference Draft RFP Questions – Set 2, Question 9).
18. L.16.3, Exhibit 1A, Exhibit 15: In comparing these two exhibits, we noticed that the Government’s incumbent labor position descriptions in Exhibit 15 contain three labor categories that are not used in the Government Pricing Model included in Exhibit 1A. These include the following: Configuration Management Specialist, Flight Software Engineer, and RF Engineer. Are these labor categories going to be incorporated into the ESES II contract even though they are not required to be priced?

ANSWER:  Yes, rates for these labor categories will be incorporated into the contract in Attachment B even though they are not priced as part of the Government Pricing Model. (Also see Draft RFP Questions – Set 2, Question 27.) 
19. Section L.17.2(k) Phase-In Plan, p.100, indicates that the 30-day phase-in will be accomplished as a task order under the resulting contract. Section F.1, p. 13, indicates that the ordering period for the contract will be 5 years. Together, these two sections would imply that Offerors pricing should include the Phase-In pricing for the first 30 days of the contract, followed with full contract staffing upon completion of the Phase-In. That is inconsistent with the Cost Exhibits, which include full staffing (in the GPM) for the 5 years of the contract. 

Please clarify if the Phase-In should be priced as a 30-day period independent of the 5-year full contract pricing in the GPM, or if the pricing should assume that Contract Year-1 has only 11 months of full contract staffing.

ANSWER:  The five year ordering period is inclusive of the 30-day phase-in to be accomplished through the issuance of a task order under the contract. The GPM should be viewed as pricing for the technical work to be done within the first 12 month period (which includes the 30-day phase-in).
20. Section L.17.2(h) Basis of Estimate, p.99, indicates that BOEs for RTO #3 are required from the Prime and all Significant Subcontractors (defined as those expected to exceed 5% of the Government Pricing Model).

Depending on the Offeror’s proposed solution for RTO #3, it is possible that a teammate that is a Significant Subcontractor by virtue of exceeding the 5% of the GPM criterion may not be involved in the proposed solution for RTO #3. Therefore, a BOE from that Significant Subcontractor would not be applicable. We recommend a change to the RFP to require a single “integrated BOE” that provides justification for all labor, materials, travel, equipment, and other direct costs for the Prime and all subcontractors proposed as part of the RTO #3 solution.

(Similar Question): L.17.2(g): Under the heading for ‘Basis of Estimates (BOE)’ the DRFP states “BOEs for RTO #3 shall be submitted by both the Prime Offeror and all significant subcontractors and shall not exceed 20 pages…” If a planned significant subcontractor for the contract has no appropriate role on this RTO, is that subcontractor still required to submit a BOE?
(Related Question): L.17 COST VOLUME, (h) BASIS OF ESTIMATES (BOE), p.99, the second paragraph fifth bullet states “The BOE for the significant subcontract …..” This seems to be an error. Should it read “The BOE for the significant subcontractor(s)…….?”

ANSWER: Significant subcontractors that are not involved in an Offeror’s proposed solution for RTO #3 are not required to submit a BOE. 

The typographical error noted in the second question above will be corrected in the final RFP.

21. Under Section L Past Performance (Page 102), the 5th bullet requests “Date of contract, place(s) of performance, and delivery dates or period of performance.”  Please clarify if “Date of contract” means the date of contract award.

ANSWER: “Date of contract” means the date of contract award.
22. Section L Past Performance (Page 103): The 2nd bullet requests “Recent customer evaluations of past performance including Award Fee Evaluation results, Fee Determination Official letters, Annual Performance Evaluation Forms, etc. (Excluded from the page limitation).”  Please define “Recent”.  Is it the most recent evaluation, all of the evaluations within the past 5 years, or some other definition?

ANSWER: Generally, in accordance with NASA FAR Supplement Part 1842.1502, annual performance evaluations are required for contracts having a period of performance exceeding one year. For award fee type contracts, typically performance evaluations are conducted semi-annually.  Therefore, a recent evaluation would generally be one that had been conducted within the last 12 months. However, offerors are not precluded from offering additional information within the page limitations.
23. Section L.18(a): Under the heading ‘Information from the Offeror’ it appears that the final sentence in the fifth paragraph duplicates the final sentence in the first paragraph. Will this redundancy be eliminated in the final RFP so that offeror’s are only required to address this topic once in this page-limited volume?
ANSWER: The duplicative sentence will be removed from the first paragraph.
24. Section L.18(a), p. 101, refers to “…other RFP information and available historical performance data…” However, to date, GSFC has not provided any historical performance data for the ESES contract. Please identify what historical performance data will be provided and the anticipated availability date.
ANSWER: The ESES II library has recently been updated to add information on all active ESES Interim contract tasks. In addition, upon request Offerors may be granted limited access to ESES Interim contract information available in the NASA Task Order Management System (TOMS).
25. Section M.3.1

25.1 Under the heading ‘Subfactor B – Management Plan, in the fourth paragraph, it states “The offeror’s ability to provide any necessary support to perform under the resultant contract, respond to critical requirements, and staff new requirements from existing resources and from outside sources will be evaluated for reasonableness and effectiveness.” However, Section L does not require that offerors address these specific topics. Please clarify.

ANSWER:  The language in Section L.16.3 Subfactor B, fourth paragraph will be revised to clarify that offerors are to address these specific topics.

25.2 Under the heading ‘Subfactor B – Management Plan, in the eighth paragraph, it states “The Government will consider the adequacy of the offeror’s special considerations or processes used for ensuring the effectiveness and efficient assumption of work performed by another contractor.” However, there appears to be no requirement in Section L for offerors to address this topic. Please clarify.
ANSWER:  This sentence will be removed from Section M.
25.3 Under Subfactor B, there is no specific language in the evaluation factors that addresses the requirement for the Offeror to “address its preparation for the timely processing of the Personal Identity Verification (PIV) requirements.”  Please clarify how this requirement will be evaluated.

ANSWER:  This section will be revised in the final RFP to clarify that PIV processing will be evaluated in conjunction with the offeror’s phase-in approach.

26. M.4 Cost/Price Evaluation Factor:  The text includes “See Section M.4 for additional information on the potential impact of the resource realism within the evaluation of the Mission Suitability Factor. “  

26.1 Should the M.4 reference be M.3?  
26.2 If yes, what is the additional information on the potential impact of the realism on the Mission Suitability evaluation?  The only text that is included in M.3 is “The Mission Suitability evaluation will include the results of any resource realism analysis.” 
(Similar Question): Section M.4, p. 110, Under the paragraph titled “Representative Task Order (RTO),” the DRFP reads “See Section M.4 for additional information on the potential impact of the resource realism within the Evaluation of the Mission Suitability Factor.” 

Please clarify the intent of this reference, since it is within Section M.4, and there is no additional information on the subject matter. 

(Similar Question): Reference Section M.4, DRFP page 110: Section M.4 under the RTO paragraph states, “See section M.4 for additional information on the potential impact of the resource realism within the evaluation of the Mission Suitability Factor.” Question: Should this instead reference Section M.3?  
ANSWER: The reference to M.4 in this section will be corrected to refer to M.3 in the final RFP.

Paragraph 1 of Section M.3 states:   “The Mission Suitability evaluation will take into consideration whether the resources proposed are consistent with the proposed efforts and accomplishments associated with each subfactor or whether they are overstated or understated for the effort to be accomplished as described by the offeror and evaluated by NASA. The offeror’s justification for the proposed resources will be considered in this evaluation. If the offeror’s proposal demonstrates a lack of resource realism, it will be evaluated as demonstrating a lack of understanding of, or commitment to the requirements.” The resources delineated in the BOE for RTO 3 will be evaluated in conjunction with the Mission Suitability proposal for RTO 3 to assess consistency and resource realism.
27. Attachment A
27.1 Page 6: In the first paragraph on page 6 of the ESES-II SOW there is a reference to GPR 7123.1, Systems Engineering. This document does not appear on the list of GPR publications (http://www.everyspec.com/NASA). It appears that this may be a typo and the correct reference should be NPR 7123.1A, Systems Engineering Processes and Requirements w/Change 1 (11/04/09). Question: Should this reference be changed to NPR 7123.1A?

ANSWER: No, GPR 7123.1 is GSFC’s implementation of NPR 7123.1.  This document will be posted on the ESES-II Bidder’s Library.  

27.2 Page 41:  The list of Applicable Documents and Specifications on page 41 of the ESES-II SOW identifies NPR 7120.5 as a mandatory compliance document in the execution of the ESES-II SOW.  It appears that this document has been replaced by NM 7120-97 NASA Space Flight Program and Project Management Requirements, which is defined as the NASA Interim Directive (NID) for NPR 7120.5D. There is also a companion document to NPR 7120.5D that is titled NPR 7120.5, NASA Space Flight Program and Project Management Handbook, dated February 2010. Question:  Should NM 7120-97 and its companion handbook (NPR 7120.5, NASA Space Flight Program and Project Management Handbook, dated February 2010) be used to support the planning and execution of ESES-II Task Orders and Representative Task Orders (RTOs)? If not, what references should be used?
ANSWER: The documents cited in the SOW are subject to continual change and revision throughout the contract period.  The applicable documents section of the SOW states: “the latest updated version shall apply”. The contractor will be expected to utilize the most current versions in performing the work under ESES II.  Regarding this specific change, NPR 7120.5D will soon be revised to version “E”.  The NID is to be followed until this revision is officially released as stated in NODIS.  Its companion handbook mentioned will be added to the SOW as a reference.  Please note, both NPR 7120.5, its handbook, as well as SP-6105, The NASA Systems Engineering Handbook, will be listed as “reference” documents, and as such, are not prescriptive but rather an information source to be used in the successful accomplishment of ESES II tasks.
27.3 Function 2, Section D.15, pages 15-16: Is it appropriate to assume that security clearances are required for personnel supporting the RF Specific Task Orders under the Detail Design Services only? Please note that no other specific security clearance requirements were identified in this SOW section.
ANSWER: At this time, this is the only identified component of the Statement of Work (SOW) for which security clearances would be expected.  However, the Government may have such a requirement in the future on other SOW components that would require a security clearance.  If required, appropriate lead time would be permitteded to process or identify an employee(s) with an active clearance(s).   
27.4 RF Specific Tasks, page 16, Sensitive Compartmented Information (SCI) clearance is identified, but the Attachment D (DD Form 254) only reflects a Secret Clearance. Please identify which clearance will be required.
ANSWER: Reference to SCI classification will be removed from the SOW.  There is no additional action for the contractor to take beyond the DD Form 254, which indicates SCI access is not required at this time.  
27.5 Function 2, Section D.15, page 16: The first full sentence on page 16 states, “…and the ability to access to an SCI facility and material is required.” Question: Should this sentence read as follows: “…and the ability to obtain access to an SCI facility and material is required.”?
ANSWER: As noted above, the SCI classification will be removed from the SOW.
27.6 Function 3, Section F.3.b, page 31: The function “Management of mission test facilities that require significant computer capabilities” seems out of scope with web page development. Please clarify.
ANSWER: This function will be moved from this section and placed under Computer Support Specific Tasks. 
27.7 Function 4, Section E.4, page 37: Sub-bullet “a” appears to have been omitted.
ANSWER: This typographical error will be corrected in the final RFP.
28. Section M.2, Item 3 Relative Order of Importance of Evaluation Factors – In these budget constrained times it is imperative that NASA and its contractor teams focus more on cost and efficiency.  The budget environment of the past will not be the budget environment of the future. The Section M.2, Relative Order of Importance rewards repeating the past over improving cost and efficiency by lowering overhead and general & administrative expenses.  We believe that the relative order of performance should rank cost over past performance and encourage innovations in productivity to lower costs.  This was the case in the ESES 1 RFP (cost over past performance in relative ranking of individual factors).

ANSWER:  Section M.2, Item 3 will be revised as follows in the final RFP:

“The Cost/Price Factor is significantly less important than the combined importance of the Mission Suitability Factor and the Past Performance Factor. As individual Factors, the Mission Suitability Factor and the Cost Factor are approximately equal and the Past Performance Factor is less important.”
29. Section M.3 Item 1, Subfactor B, paragraph 6 – This clause limits evaluations of PCB manufacturing to corporate resources only, and only those within the local proximity.  Goddard Code 560 utilizes multiple PCB manufacturers including manufacturers which are not a corporate resource of the incumbent and manufacturers which are not local.  Interviews with the NASA ESES customers have repeatedly stated a desire to utilize multiple PCB manufactures which are local and remote and which have been qualified by NASA.  This clause limits and evaluates qualified sources for PCB manufacturing unfavorably. We believe this is not in the best interest of the government.

(Similar Question): Section M of the Draft RFP states: “The Government will evaluate the offeror’s corporate resources for PC board fabrication and other manufacturing facilities, as well as equipment and management tools.  Facilities and equipment proposed will be evaluated based on relevancy, capability, available capacity, and proximity to the Baltimore-Washington area.”  Would the government consider removing or modifying the “proximity to the Baltimore-Washington area” as an evaluation criteria? We believe the criteria as currently stated may limit the approach and capacity planning. In addition, firms with fabrication and manufacturing facilities in the Baltimore- Washington area are exclusive to an offeror, but would be brought on board with the winning offeror.

ANSWER:  The final RFP will be revised to remove the evaluation criterion “proximity to the Baltimore-Washington area”.

30.  May proposal pages be marked with ITAR limitations?

ANSWER: Yes.

31. Enclosure A includes 15 labor categories with “composite incumbent rate” as Not Available. Will these rates be made available?

ANSWER: No. The information is not available.
32. M.3.1: RFP page 109 states: “The offeror’s Quality Assurance Plan will be evaluated for completeness and effectiveness. The offeror’s plan to ensure compliance with quality standards and Clause E.4 will be evaluated.”  Please confirm the Government’s intent regarding Clause E.4 in the evaluation criteria. Clause E.4 refers to FAR 52.246-8, Inspection of Research and Development – Cost Reimbursement, while Clause E.5 refers to FAR 52.246-11, Higher-Level Contract Quality Requirement. A recent GSFC RFP with similar requirements for a Quality Assurance Plan referred to Clause E.5.
ANSWER: The correct clause reference is E.5; the RFP will be revised accordingly.
33. Under Section IV of the Past Performance Questionnaire (Exhibit 13), there are performance ratings on the title line of “SOW Function 3 – Research and Technology Services”.  It appears that the performance rating cells should be blank on this line.  Does the government intend to obtain an overall performance rating for SOW Function 3 in the questionnaire?

ANSWER:  These cells should be blank.  This will be corrected in the final RFP.

34. Part IV, SOW Survey of the Past Performance Questionnaire only includes SOW Functions 2, 3 and 4. In addition, only select requirements within SOW Functions 2, 3 and 4 are included. Please explain the significance of the selected SOW requirements and if the Government only requires Offerors to discuss relevancy of their contract references within the Past Performance Volume to these stated SOW requirements.

ANSWER:  The Government has elected to focus on the most critical components of the SOW in evaluating past performance.  Accordingly, offerors should focus past performance relevancy on these areas.  
EXHIBIT 14 - REPRESENTATIVE TASK ORDERS
35. RTO 1: The spacecraft to ground link is specified as 30 Mbps average. Is the S/C downlink at a variable data rate as indicated, or is the usable VLT data rate variable within a fixed 30 Mbps downlink data rate?

ANSWER: The 30 Mbps average data rate is between the VLT instrument and the S/C. This is averaged out over the time the instrument is actually observing, which can be assumed to be up to 100% of the orbit.  The ground link rate is not specified in this task.  

36. RTO 3:
36.1 In the RTO 3 Task Description in Exhibit 14 of the DRFP, there is a requirement for “Electrical Power Subsystem”, which includes two sub-elements: (1) solar array, battery, electronic box design; and (2) EPS GSE design. 
36.1.1 Since the specification for the RTB Power Subsystem is identified as one of the Applicable Documents (Hypothetical), and the Background states that the RTB S/C can accommodate the GHI power requirements, we do not understand why this is a task requirement. In addition, there are no deliverables related to the RTB EPS. Please clarify this requirement. 
36.1.2 The solar array and battery (Electrical Power Subsystem) are parts of the fixed price spacecraft purchase and appear to be outside the scope of the instrument refurbishment and modification effort. Does the Government actually intend that the ESES II contractor include solar array and battery design work in the RTO-3 response? 
Answer: The requirement for the “Electrical Power Subsystem” is in support of accommodating GHI, and since the text addresses that the power system is sufficient to support the instrument, the element addresses the GHI High Voltage Power System, and the Solar Array and Battery sub elements will be removed.  The title of the element will be changes to GHI High Voltage system.

36.2 The RTB spacecraft, having recently completed CDR, can be expected to have a fully developed Mission Assurance Plan and Systems Safety Plan but these are not listed in the Applicable Documents. The direction that the ESES II contractor is to "perform the following" can be interpreted as developing these plans but the plans are not included in the list of items deliverable under the task.
Is it the Government's intention that the ESES II contractor will develop these plans under this task or that the work performed by the ESES II contractor will be performed under existing plans? 
ANSWER: The Mission Assurance and System Safety Plan will be added to the Applicable documents as well as the Deliverables.  This plan will need to be revisited in support of accommodating of the GHI Instrument.
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